
    MINUTES
    October 20, 2020
    Page 1 of 4

MINUTES
WILKES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

October 20, 2020

PUBLIC CONCERNS – None

The Wilkes County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, October 20, 2020 at 6:00 P.M. at
the Wilkes County Agricultural Center located at 416 Executive Drive, Wilkesboro, NC 28697
with the following members present:  Chairman Eddie Settle, Vice Chairman David Gambill,
Commissioner Keith Elmore, Commissioner Gary D. Blevins, and Commissioner Brain S.
Minton.  

Also present for the meeting were Tony Triplett, County Attorney; John Yates, County Manager;
and Sarah Call, Clerk to the Board.

Chairman Eddie Settle welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order.

INVOCATION – Vice Chairman David Gambill led the Invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Chairman Settle led the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Motion was made by Commissioner Brian S. Minton, seconded
by Commissioner Keith Elmore and unanimously adopted to approve the Minutes of the Board
Meeting held on October 6, 2020.

BUDGET AMENDMENTS/TRANSFERS – Motion was made by Vice Chairman David
Gambill to approve Departmental Line-Item Budget Transfer Request MTR# 2 (Sheriff & E911
– This request is to transfer funds where the Coronavirus Relief Funds of $816,500 have been
used to cover dedicated expenses approved by NC PRO); and Departmental Line-Item Budget
Transfer Request MTR# 3 (EMS & Jail – This request is to transfer funds where the Coronavirus
Relief Funds of $793,236 have been used to cover dedicated expenses approved by NC PRO).
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Brian S. Minton and unanimously approved.

FIRE MARSHAL – 2020 FIREWORKS PERMIT APPLICATION – APPROVAL –
Chairman Settle welcomed and recognized Niki Hamby, Fire Marshal.  Mr. Handy stated he is
asking for approval of a Fireworks Display for Union Baptist Church in Hamptonville for an
event on November 1, 2020.  He added the application meets all the requirements of the 2010
Pyrotechnics Act and the county requirements.  Mr. Hamby said they have the appropriate
Certificate of Insurance and licenses are in place.  By statute the local Board of County
Commissioners must approve this application.  

Commissioner Keith Elmore made a motion to approve the 2020 Fireworks Display Permit
Application for Union Baptist Church as presented.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner
Brian S. Minton and passed unanimously.



    MINUTES
    October 20, 2020
    Page 2 of 4

 EMS – EAST WILKES MIDDLE SCHOOL BASE:

1. LEASE AGREEMENT – County Attorney Tony Triplett stated the memo and
two documents are in the packets and will need separate approvals.  He added they are part of the
same transaction for East Middle EMS Base that they have been discussing for a while.  Board of
Commissioner Approval is needed, the Board of Education has already approved both
documents.  Mr. Triplett said the lease agreement is a 99 year lease and a temporary construction
easement for the site.  He stated as mentioned in the memo the County did discuss at one point
owning this property, for several reasons they decided to move forward with a 99 year lease.  Mr.
Triplett said one is it is identical to the way they did the transaction at Mtn. View, under the
same structure for both sites and it is quicker.  They have a 99 year lease with a 180 day out
clause should any Board decide they want out they will have the right to terminate.  He added
these are advantages of the 99 year lease, however the Board of Education would have gladly
approved either.  Mr. Triplett said their Attorney, Fred Johnson and he both felt it was best to
proceed with the lease for these reasons.

Chairman Settle asked if there is a statute that states they have to pay them market value.  Mr.
Triplett replied yes, when a School Board conveys ownership of property to another entity, even
the County, fair market value has to be established and paid.  There is some latitude and they
could possibly put forth the argument that the presence of an EMS Base on school property
would constitute adequate consideration for the transfer.  He added there is an uncertainly to this.
The Constitution simply provides that they cannot convey away property without adequate
consideration and the Courts have said it is fair market Value.  Mr. Triplett said the lease takes
care of that issue.  Commissioner Blevins asked if they invoked their right to terminate the lease,
they would take ownership of the building.  Mr. Triplett replied they would unless the county
removes the building and they could do this if they like.

Vice Chairman David Gambill made a motion to approve the Lease Agreement with the Wilkes
County Board of Education and Wilkes County as presented at tonight’s meeting.  The motion
was seconded by Commissioner Gary D. Blevins and unanimously approved.

2. TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT – Mr. Triplett said they need
to approve the Temporary Construction Easement that the Board of Education has already
approved.  He added there is a well near the site that is used to run an irrigation line to the
ballfields at the school.  The well will not be disturbed, but the base will go over the irrigation
line and it will have to be relocated as part of the construction.  Mr. Triplett said a septic
easement as they did with Mtn. View is not needed at East Middle, it will be on the leased
property.  Commissioner Elmore asked where will the water come from for the facility.  Mr.
Yates replied, Ronda has a water line that will service the Base. 

Commissioner Gary D. Blevins made a motion to approve the Temporary Construction
Easement with the Wilkes County Board of Education and Wilkes County as presented at
tonight’s meeting.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Brian S. Minton and
unanimously approved.



    MINUTES
    October 20, 2020
    Page 3 of 4

HIGH COUNTRY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS – BOARD REAPPOINTMENTS –
WILKES COUNTY ADULT CARE HOME COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE –
County Manager John Yates said they received a letter from Ms. Stevie John requesting Ms. Jean
Brown, Ms. Elizabeth Harris, and Ms. Brenda Sales each be reappointed for an additional 3-year
term to the Wilkes County Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee.  He added they
have all indicated their desire to be reappointed and asked that Ms. Brown, Ms. Harris, and Ms.
Sales’ to be reappointment.  All have completed the Board No Change Form as required.

Commissioner Keith Elmore made a motion to approve the reappointments of Ms. Jean Brown,
Ms. Elizabeth Harris, and Ms. Brenda Sales to serve on the Wilkes County Adult Care Home
Community Advisory Committee for an additional 3-year term as requested.  The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Brian S. Minton and unanimously approved.

OLD BUSINESS – Commissioner Elmore said he would like to understand the Board of County
Commissioners role in the Election process and the Wilkes County Board of Elections role.  He
stated they want more polling sites.  This is a large county and they need more located in the East
and West.  The two they selected in town are good.  He asked what are their roles other than
funding their budget.  Mr. Triplett replied it is a hybrid like many other departments.  It is a
county department and they are county employees; the County has a fiscal role in their funding.
He added as for the elections themselves the Board of Elections has primary control virtually
over all aspects of election, including setting polling sites.  This does not fall to the Board of
Commissions and their ability to control any aspects of elections are very limited.
Commissioner Elmore asked who the employees report to, the County Manager or their
appointed Board.  Mr. Yates replied he has never hired anyone in that Department.
Commissioner Elmore stated the County sets salaries, but they do the hiring.  Mr. Yates replied
yes.  

Mr. Triplett stated, he believes by statute they report to the  Director, Kim Caudill and she
reports to their Board and they hire that position.  Mr. Yates added Ms. Caudill is very good to
work with him and the Finance Officer.  Commissioner Elmore agreed, she is excellent.  He
added he has been asked out in the community why don’t the County Commissioners have more
sites.  This is why he asked for clarification so they could respond to these questions.  Chairman
Settle, stated these are great questions and asked how the 5 members of that Board are appointed.
Is it by the Governor, does each party nominate people, how does this work?  Mr. Triplett replied
he is unsure, it was restricted several years and no more than 3 can be from the same political
party.  Commissioner Elmore stated he thinks each party nominates 2 and the Governor makes
the appointments.  Mr. Triplett said he served on the Board of Elections in the 1980’s and that is
the way it worked at that time and assume it is the same now.

Chairman Settle said Wilkes County was approved for 3 sites, they petitioned the state to only
have 2 sites when Surry County has 4 sites.  It is tougher on their citizens with just 2 sites.
Commissioner Elmore added there is room for improvement, it does seem to fall back on the
county leadership.  They fund it and should get to help in the decisions, they are responsible to
the citizens and the Board of Elections is not.  Chairman Settle agreed, he gets many questions
why they have to drive 30 minutes up the road to vote, they should be spread out in each corner 



    MINUTES
    October 20, 2020
    Page 4 of 4

of the county for early voting.  Commissioner Elmore stated the budget was cut originally for
everyone and then Covid money came in to Elections, and asked how much they received.
Finance Director Chris Huffman replied Budget Amendment # 6 they received $116,000 Covid
money and Budget Amendment # 15 they got an additional $23,000.  Commissioner Elmore
stated they should have been plenty of money to do 4 sites.  Mr. Yates added their 14% cut
amounted to $47,000 and then they received the extra additional money.  Commissioner Elmore
stated the funding was not the issue, correct.  Mr. Yates replied yes.       

ADJOURN – Motion was made by Commissioner Keith Elmore, seconded by Commissioner
Brian S. Minton and by unanimous vote adopted to adjourn the meeting of the Wilkes County
Board of Commissioners at 6:26 P.M.

Sarah D. Call, Clerk                                        Eddie Settle, Chairman

           WILKES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Approved: November 5, 2020




